orace

Horace Planning Commission Meeting Minutes — October 27, 2020

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Planning Commissioners of the City of Horace,
North Dakota, was held in the City Council Room at City Hall at 6:00 p.m., Tuesday,
October 27, 2020.

The Horace Planning Commissioner present and absent were as follows:

Present: Russell Sahr, Kim Stokes, Amy Beaton, Julie Hochhalter, and Todd May.

Chair Sahr called the meeting to order.

Business ltems:

Item B: Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 13, 2020

Commissioner Hochhalter moved the minutes of the October 13, 2020 Planning
Commission meeting be approved. Second by Commissioner Beaton. All Commissioners
present voted aye and the motion was declared carried.

Item C: Approve Order of Agenda

Barrett Voigt, Community Development Director, requested to add the items of an RFP
updated and Covid-19 for discussion. Commissioner May moved the amended Order of
Agenda be approved as presented. Second by Commissioner Hochhalter. All
Commissioners present voted aye and the motion was declared carried.

Item D: Public Hearing Items

Item 1: Southdale Farms Third Addition - Plat and Zoning Change

Barrett Voigt, Community Development Director, presented the staff report for a plat
and zone change from A Agricultural to MU Mixed-Use, C-2 Town Center Commercial, PF
Public Facilities, and R-6 High Density Residential for the proposed plat of Southdale
Farms Third Addition. Mr. Voigt recommended approval as stated in the staff report.

Applicant Chris Mack spoke on behalf of the application.

Discussion was held on drainage, MU zoning, and future multi-use path and roadway
improvements.

Commissioner Stokes moved to approve the proposed Plat and Zoning Change.
Seconded by Commissioner May. All Commissioners present voted aye and the motion
was declared carried by a vote of 5-0.



prace

Chairman Sahr moved to provide the City Council with comments that the Planning
Commission would like to see improvements to 66t Street South from 70t Avenue
South to 76" Avenue South when a public hearing for improvement district is being
discussed. Seconded by by Commissioner may. All Commissioners present voted aye
and the motion was declared carried by a vote of 5-0.

Item 2: Lakeview Heights Third Addition - Zoning Change

Barrett Voigt, Community Development Director, presented the staff report for a zone
change from C-1 Neighborhood Commercial to C-2 Town Center Commercial for Lots 1-
2, and 4, Block 1, Lakeview Heights Third Addition. Mr. Voigt recommended approval as
stated in the staff report.

Commissioner Beaton moved to approve of the proposed Plat and Zoning Change.
Seconded by Commissioner May. All Commissioners present voted aye and the motion
was declared carried by a vote of 5-0.

Item E: Other Items

A. New Zoning Ordinance Update

Barrett Voigt, Community Development Director, provided an update on the
Request for Proposal (RFP) for a new zoning ordinance.

B. Covid-19

Discussion was held on rising Covid-19 cases and how the Planning Commission
would like to return to public hearing meetings via Zoom software.

Adjournment



Entitlements
Requested:

Title:

Location:

Parcel Number:

Owner(s)/ Applicant:

Status:

Agenda Item No. D.1

Plat (A replat of Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Johnson Second Addition, together
with the frontage road and a portion of First Avenue North and a vacation of
a portion of the frontage road and a portion of First Avenue North to the City
of Horace, Cass County, North Dakota ) and a Zoning Change (from R-E

Residential Estate to PF Public Facilities)

Horace Elementary First .
Addition Date: 11-03-2020
110 3 Avenue North Staff Barrett Voigt
Contact:
Lots 1 and 2, Block 1,
15035000010000 & Legal " zgn;;grffggr;‘; ﬁfimon
15035000020000 Description: Avenue North and the
frontage road.
West Fargo Public Engineer/
Schools/Mark Lemer Surveyor: ileae ¢ R
Planning Commission Hearing: November 10, 2020

Land Use

Zoning

Uses Allowed

Elementary School
R-E Residential Estate

e Accessory buildings and
structures not to exceed 3%
of the gross lot area.

e  Churches, schools, and
public facilities including
libraries, parks, schools and
golf courses.

e Home occupation

e Single-family detached
residential uses with a
minimum of 2,000 square
feet of living space.

No Change
PF Public Facilities

Facilities including City Hall,
libraries, other municipal build
open space, parks, golf courses, and
other publicly owned athletic
recreational facilities.

Essential services.

Public utilities.

Public Schools.

Educational offices.

Hospitals.

Museums.

Community theatres.

Art Centers.

Other: Accessory uses and activities
not listed, but similar to

Page 10of4



Maximum Density Allowed Maximum lot coverage of 30% PF has no lot coverage requirement.

The applicant is seeking approval of the proposed Horace Elementary First Addition, a replat of Lots 1
and 2, Block 1, Johnson Second Addition and a portion of First Avenue North, into a 1 Lot, 1 Block
subdivision of approximately 8.6 acres for the purpose of an anticipated addition onto the existing
elementary school building. In addition, the applicant requests to rezone the subject properties from R-E
Residential Estate to PF Public Facilities.

The West Fargo Public Schools is preparing to add an addition on to the north side of the building along
with an access drive along the north side of the property to accommodate for a school bus drop off area.
Additional parking stalls are proposed along the east side of the building and the eastern access point to
the south parking lot would be removed. A drainage pond is proposed for the west side of the property
where overflows will run along the back of the residential lots along Ironwood Drive until each reaches
the inlet at Chestnut Drive so that drainage for the site will be improved. For more information, please
refer to the proposed site plan for the school addition attached with this report.

Before the project is anticipated to start, the school district would like to combine the 2 lots that currently
exist on the site into one (1) for the purpose of improving that site so that it can more adequately allow
for the site improvements stated above so that the development proposal will meet City zoning ordinance
requirements.

The elementary school site today is located on two (2) lots. Incorporated into the school site, a publicly
dedicated, north-south frontage road run along the eastern edge of the property. The parking lot on the
south side of the school building is dedicated public right of way. The school is addressed 110 3
Avenue North. The Johnson Second Addition plat named the street along the south edge of the school
property “First Avenue North” and the properties across the street from the school are addressed to
Ironwood Drive. Arneson First Addition named the north-south street at the south west end of the
property “2° St. W.”  In addition, the school has a commercial radio tower that was installed prior to
1998 that currently co-locates another user.

As a result of this plat, the school seeks to combine two (2) lots into one (1) lot, vacate the parking lot so
that it can be incorporated with the site, vacate the frontage road so that it can be incorporated with the
site, change the street names of First Avenue North and 2™ Street West to Ironwood Drive so that it is
consistent with current addresses in the area, and let the commercial radio tower remain as a legal non-
conforming use.

The applicant has secured a preliminary highway access permit from Cass County for the proposed
access point that allows ingress and egress to the access drive along the north property line. In addition,
the county will restripe the right-hand turn land on southbound County Road 17, south of the access
point, to alleviate confusion with turning lanes.

In addition, the West Fargo Public School district would like to request a rezone from R-E Residential
Estate to PF Public Facilities to maximize the school site so that dimensional standards of the R-E
Residential zoning district to do not prohibit the addition from meeting zoning ordinance requirements.
PF Public Facilities allows public schools by right and does not have building height restrictions.
However, PF Public Facilities has setback requirements that require setback distances to be the same as
the zoning district of abutting properties. As a result, this property would be required to have a rear-yard
setback distance of 50-feet because the properties that align along the rear property line of the property

Page 2 of 4



are all zoned R-E Residential Estate. The preliminary site plan proposal for the addition on this site
would meet the 50-foot rear setback requirement.

The Horace Park Board has stated that no land dedication is required for this subdivision application
because the plat is a lot combination and not a division of land.

This project was reviewed by the Community Development, Engineering, Public Works
Departments (“staff””) of the City of Horace, the City of Horace Fire Department and Horace Park
Board whose comments are included in this report.

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts:

* North: R-E Residential Estate with single family residential land use

» East: Across County Highway 17, PF Public Facilities and C-1 Neighborhood Commercial with
retail commercial and public facilities land uses

*  West: R-E Residential Estate with single family residential land use

* South: Across 1°* Avenue North, R-E Residential Estate and C-1 Neighborhood Commercial with
single family residential and daycare land uses

Future Land Use Plan: The future land use plan designates this area as Public/Semi-Public. The
zoning compatibility table of the 2045 Horace Comprehensive Plan offers no guidance on suggested
zoning districts for this future land use type.

Staff Analysis

Comprehensive Plan:

Section 17.3 of the Land Use Ordinance states that the ordinance is to be administered and
enforced to implement development in conformance with the Horace 2045 Comprehensive Plan for
the following:

(1) To preserve and enhance the taxable value of land and buildings, and to avoid land uses which
pose negative impacts on one another.
As a public-school property, the property is tax exempt. However, there is no anticipated negative
impacts that would result from this proposal.
(criteria satisfied)

(2) To encourage the most appropriate use of land in the city.
The proposed development plan improves upon a school building site that is already in plat while
allowing for site improvements so that the property land use may be optimized and better meet city
zoning ordinance requirements.
(criteria satisfied)

(3) To regulate and restrict the location and intensity of use of buildings and lands.
The proposal to combine lots into a single lot and change the zoning district to PF Public Facilities
will be able to accommodate the proposed development improvements so that the new property
lines and zoning district dimensional standards will accommodate for a better regulation and
restriction of the location and intensity of use of the land.
(criteria satisfied)

(4) To separate and control unavoidable nuisance producing uses to minimize the adverse impacts
on the surrounding areas or uses.

Page 3 of4



The proposed subdivision would seek to further define property lines and right-of-way areas so that
nuisances and adverse impacts can be avoided.
(criteria satisfied)

(5) To facilitate traffic movement and promote development of compatible uses.
The proposed subdivision provides a better organized street layout and access to the site so that
traffic movement is improved.
(criteria satisfied)

(6) To guide placement and types of streets, water, sanitary and storm sewers.
The proposed development anticipates the addition of a storm pond and storm sewer facilities to

improve drainage from the site.
(criteria satisfied)

(7) To guide placement and development of public facilities, parks and other municipal facilities
such as library, community center, indoor and outdoor recreational facilities.
The proposed subdivision plat would anticipate a school addition and storm water facilities to
improve the site that would be regulated by Title IV of the City Ordinance.
(criteria satisfied)

Staff Recommendation

Suggested Motion: “To accept the findings and recommendations of staff and hereby recommend
approval to the City Council of the proposed subdivision plat, Horace Elementary First Addition and
Zone Change from R-E Residential Estate to PF Public Facilities, as outlined within the staff report, as
the proposal complies with the 2045 Horace Comprehensive Plan, Standards of Sections 17.7 and all
other applicable requirements of the City Ordinance.”

Planning Commission Recommendation: November 10, 2020

Attachments

1. Zoning Map

2. Location Map

3. Final Plat Document
4. Site Plan Proposal

Page 4 of 4



